Consolidated Balance Sheet

=LA =
mEEERER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
Note USs$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5% FER FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land use rights TR 6 2,042 2,321
Property, plant and equipment W WE KEE 7 145,612 143,263
Intangible assets mEEE 9 9,070 8,677
Long-term trade receivables RHEEWRE FERR 14 - 168
Long-term other receivables £ HA H b FE WA 14 1,307 90
Investment in an associate REE AR ZIRE 11 3,555 3,350
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 161,586 157,869
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 13 82,868 65,282
Trade receivables FEUE 5B HK 14 31,651 27,825
Amount due from the non-controlling — FEURHI B A 7 IF1E A iz
interest of a subsidiary Z A - 823
Short-term loan to an associate BTEE AR ZEEER 11, 34(d) 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables T8 15 SR I8 I H fth FE WK R IE 14 9,351 13,283
Current income tax recoverable IR R E AT 2,872 -
Structured bank deposits HEEMRITFR 15 3,903 -
Short-term bank deposits RAEIRITER 15 16,063 33,287
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 15 49,679 55,210
Total current assets RBEELE 196,507 195,830
Non-current assets held for sale FHIEHEZERBEE 8 366 3,091
Total assets EEHE 358,459 356,790
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners KRREBAEBEER
of the Company
Share capital 7R 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves f# & 17 270,182 266,307
285,410 281,535
Non-controlling interest JEVE R A = (2,827) (2,329)
Total equity RSB 282,583 279,206
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Note us$’000 Us$'000
Ff 31 FEx FET
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 19,491 24,190
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTRHIAE 20 3,263 3,416
Retirement benefit obligations BRARBANEE 29 1,447 1,386
Long-term environmental provision RHER BB A 18 233 113
Total non-current liabilities kRBAELTE 24,434 29,105
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 18 15,772 18,296
Accruals and other payables FETE R I B Ath FE AT R 1E 18 17,509 15,637
Amounts due to related parties ENEBEALTHIE 34(d) 1,418 836
Bank borrowings BRITEE 19 15,906 12,620
Current income tax liabilities BIEHFT S Fi A& 837 1,090
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 51,442 48,479
Total liabilities EEHE 75,876 77,584
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 358,459 356,790

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction iR EEBEXEERBBME—GEE-
with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 201 were HMNEVI3E201EZ AW HRERERA —-F
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were —N\&E=ZA - ++tAEZEESE/MITHTIIA

signed on its behalf. TREESE
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

BRI B

Director Director

BEF EBEF
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Consolidated Income Statement

RE W
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=t+—-HLtEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5% FER FxE
Revenue Wa 5, 21 322,805 327,640
Cost of sales $HE MR 23 (254,668) (248,610)
Gross profit ER 68,137 79,030
Other gains/(losses) — net Hihlss (E1R)
— 55 22 935 (4,090)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HAS 23 (21,746) (21,517)
Administrative expenses TR 23 (24,272) (24,743)
Operating profit L RR 23,054 28,680
Finance income B IS A 853 686
Finance costs B2 H (804) (875)
Finance income/(costs) — net BRUWA ()
— 55 24 49 (189)
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) of FE(REE & R RIBR TR 128
an associate wH (E8) 1 205 (15)
Profit before income tax R AT 8 B AR F 23,308 28,476
Income tax expense T8 fi 2 25 (4,570) (6,243)
Profit for the year REERR 18,738 22,233
Profit attributable to: T &5 EERR:
Owners of the Company KABEEB A 19,061 22,501
Non-controlling interest FEIERRE (323) (268)
18,738 22,233
Earnings per share for profit EATEBEANEEER
attributable to the owners of the BAHZzEREAER
Company during the year (expressed (L8R EFIR)
in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BREXER 27 1.25 1.48
Diluted earnings per share BER#HEER 27 1.25 1.48

The above consolidated income statement should be read in 4R & W adas /e & R AR M o — G169 5 -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZTHEWE R
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=t+—RHLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Profit for the year AR EEEF 18,738 22,233
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hap2@EB A (FE) -
ltem that may be reclassified to AEFNHEEER AR
profit or loss
Currency translation differences ME X, = 5 2,054 (2,073)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEBRBEEMEZE
for the year, net of tax WA (E1R) 2,054 (2,073)
Total comprehensive income rEEXEBALE
for the year 20,792 20,160
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AT FTEEREERZER
for the year attributable to: WA (FR) 8
— Owners of the Company R VNCIE 2= DN 21,290 20,261
— Non-controlling interest —FEIERR (498) (101)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE ZHE WAL 20,792 20,160

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — Lit4rA 2B R EER GBI E—HEE-
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAES
Non-
Share Share Other Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
BA& KB EE HitGE ARG REEF @i FERER BRER
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US§'000
FEn TEn F£n T£n FEn TEL TER Tin
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-REF-A-A2E# 15,228 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 275,618 (2,168) 273,450
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year KEEET - - - - 22,501 22,501 (268) 22,233
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ E12ER A/ (BE)
Currency translation differences ERER - - (2,240) - - (2,240) 167 (2,073)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ ZEKA /(B L8 - - (2,240) - 22,501 20,261 (101) 20,160
Total transactions with owners BESAZERSE
Dividends (Note 26) %S (HizE26) - - - - (14,344) (14,344) (60) (14,404)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=B-AF+=A=+-H
a3 ] 15,228 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 281,535 (2,329) 279,206
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-Z—+F-A-H2&H 15,228 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 281,535 (2,329 279,206
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year FEERT - - - - 19,061 19,061 (323) 18,738
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ Ef12ER A/ (BE)
Currency translation differences ERER - - 2229 - - 2,229 (175) 2,054
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2ERA < (FB) 4% - - 2,229 - 19,061 21,290 (498) 20,792
Total transactions with owners BEEAZERSE
Dividends (Note 26) B2 (Hi26) - - - - A (17419 - (1741)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tF+tZf=+-A2
353 15,228 47,358 13,897 79,994 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bR A BB R EERARM T —Gi5E -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—HLEE

2017 2016
—ZT—+t#F —ZT—RF
Note us$000 Us$'000
B 5T FEx FE
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZHERE
Cash generated from operations ¥HEFACZES 31(a) 21,721 73,829
Interest paid B2 F B (812) (900)
Income taxes paid B TR (7,893) (6,701)
Net cash generated from operating KEXEBEEZ
activities e FE 13,016 66,228
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BELEH
equipment (16,193) (11,798)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE BE R
plant and equipment B2 TS RIA 31(a) 149 62
Proceeds from disposal of assets LERHELE 2
held-for-sale BEZFSHRIA 1,360 -
Purchases of intangible assets BEREEE 9 (77) (132)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank RASRITEROR L
deposits (3gm) 17,224 (13,957)
Increase in structured bank deposits HERE MR G (3.903) -
Interest received B UFE 790 686
Net cash used in investing activities REFBAZ
e F8E (650) (25,139)
Cash flows from financing activities Eﬂﬁiﬁibziﬁ.ﬁﬂﬁ
Dividends paid 2T 26 (17,415) (14,344)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITHE EFF[?%?X 27,987 16,735
Repayment of bank borrowings EBIRITEE (29,400) (31,651)
Net cash used in financing activities REFEBAZ
R FH (18,828) (29,260)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents W), nEE (6,462) 11,829
Cash and cash equivalents mi%ﬂzfﬁﬁ)}
at beginning of year ReEEY 15 55,210 44,190
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and LekBeEEM2
cash equivalents b i (548 931 (809)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at end of year REEEY 15 49,679 55,210

S
op
i

SR EREER AR E— 058 -

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Fili4r
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate ("MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial information of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial information have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial information
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—®EH

WABRE (ZEB)ERAR ([KAAF]) &
HMBAR (SB[ AKEDEERBE
BEREHRIDANE  EERRKER
WIXER SEEERY BEEE.
iR (KRBl HIRAAk (4R
Bel) o EmmDIHE T KM REKE
BIZ - REARLMBE ([FRE]) BA-
RERZEBMNBERNERDHE B
BHRE URRE #m SR IE
mAEER -

RARIRRFEERBEMEAL cBRA
Al fM#E S 73 P.O. Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands °

ARBRNEEBERXZMERAR LT -

= A5 i EB B MERIAETT ([
T)lE-.

RHREERFEENRREBE

REMSFEAMBRRFEABZEIEGT]
BEIWMT -HAEIRN BERERD
EHERANMBEHRTFE

2.1 REEE
AEBENGAVBERNTDREMA
ERAERHBREEN ([FERE
WEREA MR - REWHEER
TR S A B I AR 2L -

RETEBTEUBRERANES
MBENBEERE TERZNER
et MERBARAARE 285
EBIEF I E 2 HE - P S fE
HEEHEREEEMEZHEHL
BERGFHGEAVBHRRBEAN
ZHBE - R EAT TIAREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFEGHBREE(#])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
(@) The following new standards, interpretations and (@) ARFWRFIN T —LF—

amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2017, but have not
had any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial information.

HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows
(Amendments)

HKAS 12 Income taxes
(Amendments)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
(Amendments) other entities

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods. Most of the amendments will also not
affect the current or future periods.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, see note 31.

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2017 and have not been early adopted.

A—H I}ZZ{éﬁﬁﬁé‘Z,ﬁJfﬂliE
BREA T ER 2B R
R Z R B R A B
BENZBRELTAERY

2,
&

BRGHEUETE REREXR

C-HES)
BEGTEINF 2R BN
CHES)

TRUBRELEN RENEME
F12%(BETA)  BzER
N2 ZERT A E 5T B 2
R B EEMZTE K
BAERT AT T & H E ATk
RHHELRZE -

B
Eﬁ%
K

Au+ EE'J%7{Z FIT%E
m?&s&mﬂéé@héiz%{s &
B) (RIFE31) ©

UTROBEMELIEN —F
—t¥—-A—-BRBZHBE
JE AR BN LT AR 2
RR 2B RERAZERT -

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RTI BBz RS
ZFEHBEX

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BBV REEAE 1R R
BB G TR F285%
(BFTA)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

—HEE-E—

Classification and Measurement of

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

Share-based Payment Transactions

BAMBREENE2H
(BRI &)

AR RERNHRNZHZ

DEREE

1 January 2018

NEBEBMzFERE —Z-)/\F-HA—H

1 January 2018

—FT-/\%—H—-H

HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

1 January 2018

BEUWBREERIFAR BEBYBREEN LR REEAH —E-N\F—A—H
(BFTA) —HIERTREP B REEFEIR
cHTA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 KEBERFEGHHKREE(H])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
(b)  (continued) (b)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RTIBAHRZEHEA
ZEEHBER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
TR E A 95R SETA —=—)\F—A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BB TE RS R E 1558 REEPAHNZWE —E-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
BB RE LR E1558 ERUBBEERNE 1R EE —T-NFE—A—H

(1BET )
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
BB G T AR F 4058
(1BET )
HK (IFRIC) = Int 22

Transfers of Investment Property

HERKEDE

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

BB (BB BREDE HNE R 5 RIBRK(E
ZE®) —REE225%

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23

BE(BERMBRERE
ZEg) —REZE23%

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
PSR IR 2 T E 1

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HREV T MEEAFEWR ERamENRTETSE

(1BETA)
HKFRS 16 Leases
BV BREENZE 165 HE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

BAMBREENE175R REaH

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

AV BREENEI0RE REFHEEBREQRNAGEDEZHED

BB GFTAERIZE285, AEHESIE

SCHEN)

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these
new standards, interpretations and amendments to
standards is set out below.

1 January 2018
—EF-NF—-A—H

1 January 2018
—E-NE—-A—H

1 January 2019
—E-hHE—-A—H

1 January 2019

A =
1 January 2019
—E-hEFE-HH
1 January 2021
—E-—%—H—H

To be determined

BET

AEBEZEMEN 2ER
HANERI A 2 B 2R HERN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUEBEERTETHBRREE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 mEEE(HE)

(i) HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (i) BEMBREELNEIN  [£
BTA]/
Nature of change gEME

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new

BREMBHRESENFEISR TR
TRARESHEENRERAE
ZOBHERKILHER I
SIAShEETERIE 2 TR B R

impairment model for financial assets. CREEZIREER -
Impact 2

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities. The Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of the financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities.

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost and
loan commitments. Based on the assessments
undertaken to date, the Group does not expect
significant increase or decrease in the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group's disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBERIFIEZTEHHFREE (1F)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)

(i) HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with (i) BEYBEREERZE 155
customers” [KEEFPEAZ W]
Nature of change gEME

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

The Group has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements
and does not expect a significant impact on the
recognition of revenue.

Date of adoption by the Group

The adoption of this new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption,
if any, will be recognised in retained earnings as at
1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

BRGNS ERMER
N B 37 R B o 5% 2 BRI ER AR
TEEMENFEIR OREE
m M RIEEH) REB G E
AlENSE CREZESHRE
BASCE) -

Fral BRI AR E s R E
HHEEREEEPEERKIAD
JRA e

ZERAFFERMERAEE
EPWESEBCERE -

ye
A EE S 3T A
AREEBRROYE AF
BT EH WA RRELEAY

@,
2

AEERKZ B A

AT ERI R AR —F — N\
F-A—HZHZERBMI IR
FREABI AR AEEER IR
QR IR B SCE A
AR R RETE (10

BIER-_FE—-—NF—HA—H
ERE BT R B ZLEART
BB ETF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of US$2,593,000 (Note 32).
The Group estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value lease which will be
recognised on straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss are insignificant.

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEBERIEGHHEERE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(H)
(i) HKFRS 16, “Leases” (iii) BB HIREEANZE 165
[#HE ]
Nature of change gEME

BEMBREENFI6ER =
E-RNE- ARG EBRE
BAE D THE R B AR K
R ERNEEHEERE
HEZHWERHEBR - RIE
AR BE(ERBEER
BREN) RXNESNSH
BEATHR -HE—MBIINE
MR REEERS -

HABA 2 & 5 IRIE 5 A
o

S
ZEABIBYELAERK
EHENGHERE - REEB
B AEERTABHELET
€& ¥E /2,593,000 7T (Kt
F32)  AEEEET HEUE
BARIB R ER AR X & H
REEEHENHEBEMNEZE
B TEKN-

Z S NoP SR (ChRCIE
fAE () fln- ARHE
EYMEREPUNATEES
DSV EIIR 3= 3:0k0
[ B2 32 » A Ut - 18 R BE fh AT R
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(iif)  HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

2.2

The adoption of this standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts

for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2
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2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUEBEERTETHBRREE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 KMBLTF (&)
22,146 (#)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFEFHBREE(H])

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Associates (continued) 23 EELNT (HE)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and AEHRRHEBEARMZ EBEET
downstream transactions between the Group and MRGFEEZIESmNAEE B
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial MR ANER  MELIBERES
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's REEERal 2 Ezm AR -FRIEHERH
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are RHORBEHEFEELRRAE S
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of B BRAIRE IR EIE T A8 - B
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial DAEIZHBERERVEREE LA
information of associate has been changed where R EAEEPTERN 2 TR -
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

2.4 Segment reporting 24 SB®/E
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent CENAzZERFANERERH#HTER
with the internal reporting provided to the chief BEAREZRNBER B -BES
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision- RERIRTIHEEDPEEZETE
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and BERFECE—IEEARNTE
assessing performance of the operating segments, has Fo
been identified as the Executive Directors.

2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 SEH®RE

(@) WEERZHERE
AEBEER VBRI
BHEZEB  HEZEREE
EZTBRBRAZER
(IheeEa¥ ) E - HEMH
BRARDB 2N EH RA
EEEREKETLZY

b) XZRiZEH
INERZFGHRZ G REHE
BEZHEE B ZHRITEERR
ERNeeEB -A Lt 55
B R IR R R B L IMNE 5

exchange gains and losses resulting from the BzEYXEERBEMEEZ
settlement of such transactions and from the &Rz BiE  HREE IR

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (continued)
All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) —
net’.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
(continued)

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFEFHBREE(H])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued) 27 BEEE (&)
(b)  Trademarks and licence (b) EIZRIERE
Separately acquired trademarks and the licence, BYWEAEREREGR
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost FE AL AFEE - WK AR R
less accumulated amortisation and impairment FHEESE KR EEE AL #H
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- DBAMBESETE  UEER
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and RIBBAARBEENFETF
licence over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 {ET A A F HARETTH B -
years.
(c) Computer software () EEEMH
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised BANSEKEERIBIEEE
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and R {0 FA 52 4 T BB S| B RO AX
bring to use the specific software. These costs are REARE - BN A IZ E (A5t
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 AAFERAFEE-
years.
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.8 FHMBEEZHEHE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, WEREAFERAFH 2 ERE (N
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are E)HAEHRE BATFANSRE-
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject BEESEMAEHRAEME -
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever PREU B - RA RS e AN
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the BEELRENG OREEBIRE
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment EREEBLEAKERE &7
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s WR - AIRERFEREE AT ER
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The EERAIFERBAEA(URSER
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value £) BIAEESRENES BEER
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of eRBAZAMNReRE (HRNRS
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest B ) 2 HARKFEDE - BBEEZ
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash FMBEE (TBEEEE) NE2
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other A EA B A] e BB E M T AT
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed fio
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
2.9 Non-current assets held for sale 29 BEHERERDEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREEXERTETHREREE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2,10 BIKEE
2.10.1 748

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade
and other receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash
equivalents (Note 2.13), amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary, long-term other
receivables, short-term bank deposits, structured
bank deposits and short-term loan to an associate
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFEGHBREE (H])

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 BB EE (&)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2102 R RGEZ (&)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair [EATEFABRZUBHE
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through ElnBs AFEEZBELZ
profit or loss’ category are presented in the BaRELHERGE KER
consolidated income statement within ‘Other WE [Eldess (FBE) —
gains/(losses) — net’ in the period in which they SRR R 25 kD TFER A
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair BanrWBEEMEEZRE
value through profit or loss is recognised in the RAREBERAGIE 2 IR
consolidated income statement as part of other BRGARERTPIEASSH
income when the Group's right to receive payments o Yg A SR

is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non- DERIHEHEEY RIFEE
monetary securities classified as available for sale BEZRAFEZEHNHMS
are recognised in other comprehensive income. ER AR
2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments 2103 A5 m T A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net MHEEKABEREETE
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet 2RI D R R
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset BRFEEELEIRKERE
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to ERGEEABERTUERE A
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle HEGBRINGEEEABRA
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable I 8K o A% 58 Hl B 1T 2 #E A
right must not be contingent on future events VAP EUAR KK EMS B
and must be enforceable in the normal course of VAR RA AR HEFTHA
business and in the event of default, insolvency or BEEBEF URRESFH
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty. REHEM BEHEEHHE

ZIEIT R BIFRT

2.10.4 impairment 2.104 H1E

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting NEBRGEREHLEF AT
period whether there is objective evidence that MELDBEEBFEEEHEEN
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is BEEXRAVBEED M
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial BE-RAEFEEBFEREZAR
assets is impaired and impairment losses are BEIERARBREERES
incurred only if there is objective evidence of RIS REMHBH(E
impairment as a result of one or more events that BEM]) mZr (H&EF)
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a BEEFMLZIALZAEMBE
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an EZEEARRRERERBK 2
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the B AEEMET AR
financial asset or group of financial assets that can BENZHEMBEE D SED
be reliably estimated. REREELRERIE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUBERFEEHBEEE (])

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 2.10 BB EE (&)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued) 2.104 & (&)

Evidence of impairment may include indications BEFEEABEEH AR —E
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing B A IE IR E R 5 W E -
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency RS ERENFES RS
in interest or principal payments, the probability 1% & Al e & B E SOETT H A B
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial BEH mABRERE R

reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.15

2.16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBXERTETHRERHE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

218 EMIREEMSH (&)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.19

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

(b)
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUEBERTETHBREE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EEEA (&)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RHREERFERHRREE (1)

(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EERA (&)

(b)  Termination benefits (b) AR E
Termination benefits are payable when employment EAEBEEEETRIKAH
is terminated by the Group before the normal AIRIEHER B2 EEE
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts % 8 FAE AR E E e A
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these W B IE R IR A -
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits AN SR B P] 8 B EGE 42 1 IR A
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination NAR IR —IHF A IE X EIR
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to HREERENER OCREHME
terminate the employment of current employees B 0] BE ) FE - BERR A4S L AR #5 4E
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an e it —HELNUASE B
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the FEE A Rl IE RIS 2 1R 78
termination benefits are measured based on the HMEMERERNES ASG
number of employees expected to accept the offer. E-EREHEBERT @A
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the S ATHIRAATIR BEHE
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(c)  Bonus plans (c) TEATETZ
The Group recognises a liability and an expense REHEBEE -GAR (ZER
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes A EIIEER AR m A 485 T 3R
into consideration the profit attributable to the BR) BRtAEREERH
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. X o REEREHRTRBE
The Group recognises a provision where 1B 2 & E B A R
contractually obliged or where there is a past =
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d) Employee leave entitlements (d) EESEZEH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EEEHFRIENNEE=
recognised when they accrue to employees. ERER-EEZ2REBED IR
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity BRRIEBREBR T &R -
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.20 Provisions 2.20 B

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

RIGRTE  BEERAURERRE
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mEMBHRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Provisions (continued)

2.21

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M wRMEE

compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFEEHBEEE (])
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.21 Revenue and other income recognition (continued) 221 BRAKEREMEA (&)
(b) Interest income b)  FLEHKA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion FIEWMA KA ERF BIEIRRE
basis using the effective interest method. When a fEl b 5 LS AT R AR o il B 3K
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces FEWERERRE ~AEEH
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, SRETMERZEEZE#S R
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at TERBEBREMEZ HEHR
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, B EmRE 2 AT E R
and continues unwinding the discount as interest BWHEERBRITREATE
income. Interest income on impaired loan and WA HEERRERERZ
receivables is recognised using the original effective FIE AT AR BB FI = 2
interest rate. e
(c)  Dividend income (c) REMA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to T e S W B BOROEE: - IRE
receive payment is established. WA T LATER
2.22 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases) 222 HE (FAKERPOZERAAN)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and R T=R - Ik i SN ST g
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are HHEAREZHL Ao ALEN
classified as operating leases. Payments made under Ao EER 2 MR (HUR A%
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the T2z AAEER) IR BERNEA
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement NE BRI AZERGERA -
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
2.23 Dividend distribution 223 KR E
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is DIERTFARNBRR 2R EEARRTA
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s BRI EE (RAEBEA) ERS
financial statements in the period in which the dividends ZHEEA - RAREE RA A 2
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, WEPHERRAGE-
where appropriate.
Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period R EBREERGE W RRER
but before the consolidated financial statements are BHZEAEAKT R REKER
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting FRABEHHEE B TERRESHR
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of ERAAE-
the reporting period.
2.24 Financial guarantees 2.24 BAEEHER
Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group REBEFBETUGREREREE
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to =HAREARR  FAEERFETE

TERRBEHEERUBEURKRAR
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mEMBHRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.25 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong against US$.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations, which the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$1,246,000 (2016: US$1,508,000) lower/
higher (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2017, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$590,000 (2016: US$391,000) lower/
higher (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of Renminbi-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.
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3.1 BMBEEBREZ (&R)
(a) WEmEE (&)

(i)

(ii)

HNERER (48)
R-_ZE—+F+ - A
=t+—B HBEE L
ETRE/FES% AT
BEEMEEHERE T
NS BB R A5 R
b (2B
B H8 ) 1,246,000
ERXT (T — XNF:
1,508,000k L) X &
REBRBEUBEETE
ZHRWEZEREEA
fEl E Re KRG
LEEVWRENEZEZER
To H At B A SO T E A
ZHNERIE, W e

W-_ZT—+E+-A
=t+t—B MHMAREKL
%Eﬁzﬁ/ﬂES%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EHMWEHGEFTE
$¢FWM§5§%IH%W
DN (B R
b 8 0) 590,000
EnX (T — XF:
391,000% 70) * EE R
BHRENUARESFES
JEUWE SRR R H A E
WRE BehRes
BYRENE SRR
HibENREMELZ
HNEE 518U as o

REmER
[7 B

AAARNEBEKRIEITEH
SN BEERGEEE
SR NS B N S
BREGREAH LS

=2

NAEMSANEEHE
%0

ATEFIE

AREBZFERR KA
BE-RFHFERED
ZIEESAEE@EER
EREMERR Mk
BEFMERHEZEES
AREEEHQFEME
B EEFRAEZFR
AT E K AEEI
BRI RS RN o A
=S E I e g |
BB WKAEERSE
B E R E A F R R

Annual Report 2017 £ 147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(continued)
At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$74,000 (2016: US$43,000) lower/higher
(2016: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, short-term loan to an
associate and other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, short-term loan to an associate
and other receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these financial
assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 15 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
US$511,000 (2016: US$386,000) were considered
impaired and US$511,000 (2016: US$386,000)
provision was made (Note 14). Management
are of opinion that that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivable has been made.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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mEMBHRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEEHE(#H)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMHEERBEZR (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c mBELERE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial THREIEBEEEBEALE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based At TEARIS AR E 2 M558
on the remaining period at the balance sheet B AHBADHERETY
date to the contractual maturity date. The f-RNEBEHEBREEERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARFEBRERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
58 -5ZME WEEIE BBRE A&t
Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000
SE TEL TEL TET TEn
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+4F
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RiTEE (M) 16,256 9,161 10,195 1,200 36,812
Trade payables ENESER 15,772 - - - 15,772
Other payables and Ei BN HRIER
accruals EEtER 8,860 - - - 8,860
Amounts due to EREREAT
related parties TR 1,418 - - - 1,418
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M) 13,387 8,264 16,479 - 38,130
Trade payables ERESER 18,296 - - - 18,296
Other payables and Ef A HRIER
accruals EEER 5,469 - - - 5,469
Amounts due to EREEEAT
related parties TR 836 - - - 836
Note: MisE -

FHEREERES TP EMR
TEERNZFE -

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings
up to their respective maturities.
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REMBRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

MERBER (&)
32 BEXER
$%@mf¥i§%2§’fﬁﬁﬁ<ﬁﬁ$%
REAEEAS R BB ZRE N U

ﬁﬁx%mﬂi@%&&ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂéﬁﬁ
ANERFE KRR RBEZERLE
BB D EARKA

BT R REEERSE ARET
BERBIRN TRERZRS S Ak
RERER BIIHBROIHEEEE
PR B (B 75

BENEMAR K FERENEE
BELESERERENR R XE
*’L\EEEEE‘%F)’TT\Z%ﬁﬁ%E
BRABEA AR E - BIEERIEIE
//IL§J1 E&/}ILE{

During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged R-T—tF FAEERERR -
from 2016, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. —ANFRRAEER B Eﬁﬁ
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were EEBBELERAAEKE - R _T—
as follows: FERZZE-RE+ZA=+—HZ
EEAGELENT:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF NS
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) RIRTTEE (HFE19) 35,397 36,810
Owners’ equity (including non- wE AR (BEFIA
controlling interest in equity) Wi IR IER) 282,583 279,206
Gearing ratio BEBELE 13% 13%
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mEMBHRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group's entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.

4
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e M RRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments
and deferred income tax assets and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditure, segment assets, segment non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets and
segment liabilities are based on the geographical location of the
assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$45,843,000 (2016:
US$34,126,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group's revenue (2016: same).

SEEH
FELEARECHTERTBATEE -
HMITESEHAEE 2 BER REH AT Z
%ﬁ&“@ﬂfﬁ?ﬁ CARBERBEFELER
REMEHNT AR ERMREZ AR 2
FIEEDMHEE (RTX) - WHEEHBRF
Dl PMERLE  DHEE  HH
g’F/}IL@JéE({EFﬂIE\-&MLﬁﬁ SHEE
BN R EHEE

FEEEARARETENHIEEE DT
o NGB HMRAELESMARE - H U
HABRFPHAHES D N HERZT L -
NEEE HHERDEE(SRITAR
IR IEFT 1S %Rﬁﬁﬁ?%)&’\jﬂﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬂkﬁ
EaBEmEtas

B2EARELIZRBRME D BAAE
ErzWamhEREERERR FL 2
HRBEBRNKEEH -

U 2% 4965 45,843,000% 7T (=T — X
4 34,126,000k L) BRE B A2 B
INBEF - RERZRARE BEEBS
H-BHEEHMETEBEAERMASEE K
10% A E (ZE—XR"F:MAR) °

(a) Segment revenue (a) o=k

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Us$'000 Us$’000
SFEETR FET

By geographical location: R IR R B 5
Vietnam i) 162,986 160,615
Japan =] 64,199 66,793
The PRC F 29,056 31,853
America x 16,761 19,042
Taiwan (=1 10,630 10,649

ASEAN member countries (other than E B E

Vietnam) (TBEWE) 31,792 32,422
Other regions H i [ 7.381 6,266
322,805 327,640
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REMBRRHE

(a)

(b)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SERHE(#E)
Segment revenue (continued) (a) HPWE (&)
2017 2016
—E—+tfF A=
uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
By product nature: REMEESE D :
MSG/GA WK REk 220,491 228,893
Modified starch/Native starch MBS RAB 34,005 40,393
Specialty chemicals FEE® 29,012 22,518
Fertiliser and feed products AE 2 44 2 18,425 15,613
Others Hit 20,872 20,223
322,805 327,640
Capital expenditures (b) EBEAERZH
2017 2016
—Z2—+tfF ZT—RHF
uss$’000 Us$’000
FER FET
Vietnam e 20,404 11,903
The PRC i 135 250
20,539 12,153
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on N THAR IR & 2 P AE M 1 5 B
where the assets are located. EEDHE-

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets.

L

EAXHBRERIEME BERR

B L ERREREREE-
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REMBEHRRMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBRH(E)
(c) Assets (o ¥E
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Uss$’000 Us$’000
FER FET
Vietnam 13 288,357 285,341
The PRC i 48,424 42,710
Hong Kong BB 20,946 28,211
Taiwan A 688 384
Singapore s 44 144
Total assets per consolidated GEBEEBBERAT
balance sheet BEHAE 358,459 356,790
Total assets are attributed to segments based on where BELEDNREBEEMRAMT SR
the assets are located. ZEDE
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME - WMERBEHERERNEES
management at the operating segment level. The HEMER - AT ASEES BRI
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation, MBEEHEE TE RE FIER
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense A2 AL Bt & R Rlm A1 (1)
and share of profit/(loss) of an associate for each R E -
operating segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax profit/(loss)
depreciation Impairment expense  of an associate
iR E D H
BHERIFTE B FraBiE X wAL (E8)
US$’000 US$’'000 US$’000 US$’'000
TXrx TER FTXrx TER
2017 —E—tF
Vietnam adEa) 17,182 - 4,125 205
The PRC s 1,183 - 433 -
Others HA - - 12 =
18,365 - 4,570 205
2016 —E-RF
Vietnam HLE 17,438 2,882 6,117 (15)
The PRC H 1,231 - 82 -
Others Hh - - 44 -
18,669 2,882 6,243 (15)
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Fe R RMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SHMEHE(E)
(d) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments, (d) BRUBEIZ2FARBHEE (SRMIE

by location: BRSM) ¢
2017 2016
—E—t & =R
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEIT
Vietnam e 137,946 135,101
The PRC F 18,778 19,160
Total B 156,724 154,261

(e) Liabilities e) &
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$'000 Us$’000
SFEETR FET
Vietnam e} 65,768 67,856
The PRC H 4,604 4,617
Hong Kong BB 3,074 3,726
Taiwan =91 2,382 1,339
Singapore ans 48 46
Total liabilities per consolidated FEBEEBERMT

balance sheet BERE 75,876 77,584
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mEMBHRME

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

X i {E A 4
AEENLHEREZERRELERNZ
A HERmREA AT

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January W—A—8 2,321 2,544
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) b {5 AR R 6E
(PfFzT23) (61) (61)
Transfer to non-current assets HEBEERELHEZ
held for sale (Note 8) EmBEE (KIE8) (360) -
Exchange differences EH =% 142 (162)
At 31 December H+ZA=+—H 2,042 2,321

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan"”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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REMBRRHE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 VE-BERRME
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
EEIR nE BERER RE  BAERE At
US$§'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTER S FEn FTEn TEn A
At 1 January 2016 R-EB-RE-A-H
Cost A 4,074 117,874 439,366 9,119 19,439 589,872
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (72,766) (330,113) (6,466) (17,927) (427,272)
Accumulated impairment ZitHE - (1,100 (4,875) - (22) (5,997)
Net book amount REZE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-®-~E
tTZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEAFE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
Additions RE 9,054 202 1,862 605 298 12,021
Transfer EE (5,883) 258 5,625 - - -
Disposals (Note 31) e (H7E31) - (64) (150) (16) (8) (238)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (H23) - (4,202) (13,284) (582) (407) (18,475)
Impairment (Note 22) wiE (HiF22) - (1,990 (772) (43) 77) (2,882)
Transfer to non-current assets HRERELERNRDEE
held for sale (Note 8) (KizEs) - (3,091) - - - (3,091)
Exchange differences EXZE (2) (463) (173) (24) (13) (675)
Closing net book amount FRE@MFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XRF
+=A=+-8
Cost & 7,243 109,735 439,123 9,046 18,945 584,092
Accumulated depreciation 2EME - (73,977) (338,552) (6,453) (17,640) (436,622)
Accumulated impairment ZifE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount KEFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-3—tf§
tZA=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Additions AE 15,535 68 3,864 447 548 20,462
Transfer % (11,425) 1,473 9,876 - 76 -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (Hi7E31) - (107) (341) (30) (11) (489)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (f:23) - (3,012) (14,149) (652) (357) (18,170)
Transfer to non-current assets BREFELE
held for sale (Note 8) FERBEE (M:=8) - - - (5) M (6)
Exchange differences EREH 3 395 125 21 8 552
Closing net book amount FREmEE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t#%
Cost 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount FRFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of US$16,878,000 (2016:
US$17,143,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$240,000
(2016: US$286,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$1,052,000 (2016: US$1,046,000) in administrative
expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$143,000 (2016: US$25,000) on qualifying
assets.

In 2016, impairment of property, plant and equipment of
US$2,882,000 related to the Group’s Ha Tinh plant which is
located in central-northern part of Vietnam, has been charged
in other gains/(losses) — net (Note 22). The impairment was due
to the underutilisation of the production capacity as a result of
the lack of supply of raw materials for production.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During 2016, the disposal of the property, plant and equipment
of Ha Tinh plant had been approved by the directors. On 22
February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to
dispose of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant
for a consideration of US$3,400,000. The relevant property,
plant and equipment were presented as non-current assets
held for sale as at 31 December 2016. The transaction was
completed during 2017.

On 5 September 2017, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, to dispose of its land use right and property,
plant and equipment for a total consideration of US$645,000
(RMB4,352,000). As at 31 December 2017, the transaction has
not been completed. The relevant land use rights and property,
plant and equipment amounted US$360,000 and US$6,000
respectively were presented as non-current assets held for sale
as at 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

AN =
FRENBHRRME
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 \|EEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
e BH4RER [ &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000
TEn FTEX TER FTER
At 1 January 2016 R=Z-~&-HA-H
Cost A 8,541 1,899 12,089 22,529
Accumulated amortisation ESE . - (1,263) (12,089) (13,352)
Net book amount REFE 8,541 636 - 9,177
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-XF
TZAE=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONERFE 8,541 636 - 9,177
Additions RE - 32 100 132
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BHEMT (ME23) - (125) 8) (133)
Exchange differences EXER (499) - - (499)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
At 31 December 2016 R-E-XRE
+=A=+-H
Cost B 8,042 1,931 12,189 22,162
Accumulated amortisation RE B - (1,388) (12,097) (13,485)
Net book amount REFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-tF
+-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Additions NE - 77 - 77
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BHEY (H:23) - (124) (10) (134)
Exchange differences ERESR 450 - - 450
Closing net book amount ERREFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—t&
+=A=+-A
Cost A 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation SEEH - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount FEFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. A AITHASL -
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BRLRE (|)
R R A

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group's CGUs according to B DIRBAREEEE D 5B EFHIGR

operating segment. BB
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
FEIKE KA
HEER el E &t
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
F=T FET F=T
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-_A=+—H 7,762 730 8,492
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+-_A=+—H 7,312 730 8,042

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on R BN 2l RE 2B U EFEH

value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated

BEZHAEE %EAEECRENERE
Bz AFMHEESH ZBRRATR
ERERAET BHASHZRDRE
ERUTAEI 2 EFFERRESR (E

) BRESEBRWIRG BLUME
BRIEEBEEMESRTFIRER-

growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG
related business in which the CGU operates.

ARG ERERBHEEZES BEBZE

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of

the goodwill in the PRC MSG related operating segment are as AEEsEERRMT -
follows.
The PRC
A El
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —T-REF
Growth rate in sales volume HESERX 0% - 10% 0% - 20%
Growth rate in sales price HEBERE 0% - 1% 0%
Gross margin FEF = 18.7% - 29.9% 26.1% - 32.5%
Other operating costs per annum FEHEAMSE A
(Us$'000) (F%71) 2,152 - 2,467 2,344 -2,919
Long term growth rate REER X 3% 3%
Discount rate IR 12.5% 12.5%
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REMBRRHE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use
calculations exceeds carrying value by US$2.7 million. A
decrease in annual sales volume growth rate of 8%, a decrease
in annual sales price growth rate of 8%, a decrease in gross
margin of 3%, an increase in annual operating costs of 17%, a
fall in long term growth rate of 2.7% or an increase in discount
rate of 2%, all changes taken in isolation, would remove the
remaining headroom.

BRLRE (#)
HEEBNERESAFHEUNHTFHFER
T RRBEBERRLEEFHMHRE
MEAEL - HEENERX AL FEN
P FERE: RERRABITEBRS
B XEE RERERRER -

EREDRBEEAXERAEMLERY
FEHIEERE EN K prRITRE TR
AT AR S D B2 B E RS -

HAb e AT BREVR € B/ B E K
AU TEHEENHEBRRES &
BEENAEEHRBRAZEIRA L
FUBREFEHAE BEERITERRE
Al R K EAE A& B B o Ll 3 FR 1O
SEDAFTEAMN TR ERA-

FARBKRIEEAES s EmEmE - ERNE
AFAEERS AR FEBTEmDE27
BEETL FHEENEREE%  Fi
EEERRTU®RS%  EFXRTE3% &
BERARNIER17% EHEERTH2.7%
IR RIER2% FIABM L EF
1 51 B T R PR 5E o
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B I8 2 B
TARR—_F—tFt+t-_A=+—Bzx

10 SUBSIDIARIES 10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017:

EfBAF:

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
EMAYL/ RABE AEEREC  FEREEREZ
£ NREEERER TEEBREELY BRI/ MERRHE Efcliedil EZRRLA
Directly held:
ERRE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") USS$1 each
Winball Investment Limited EERIHES EBEARARR 100 BREEIETH
((RERAHE]) EAR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. EERIES EEAREER 100 BREEIETH
EAR
Indirectly hefd:
BERE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s TATIRRAER 61,109,000% T & & &
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore Us$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. R R IR A 2R 20,177,000% L £ &R
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 131,970,000 99.9% 0.1%
Corporation Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
WA (B RHBRAT il EHRRERHERBRAFMA 131,970,008 R EE
EERRAERBISER IXTNLER
BERE ARR BHRY-
BERR RIRBRUHERD
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited liability Manufacture and sale of MSG in the PRC US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. company Registered capital
LRKASKEZERAA B AREARR EREEERBERE 17,200,000 2 M E A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$9,800,000 100% -
company Registered capital
LERACEARAR B AREARR EREBRRHERE 9,800,000 AR
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$20,270,000 100% -
company Registered capital
ERRARGARAR B AREARR ERERRRHERE 20,270,000 LA A
Xiamen Darong Import & Export PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Trade Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EMAAEHDZZERAR TE - FREFLA ErEEEAZRNIEER 254,000E T AR
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REMBRRHE

11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE

(a)

Investment in an associate
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

REZEAFRZRR BKTFHRELRLZ

HMR®

(a) REBELARZRE

REERRZREZZFHIT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-R

us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

As at 1 January w—A—8 3,350 3,365
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) of 3l A=

an associate BRi&EF, (EE) 205 (15)

As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,555 3,350

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31
December 2017 and 2016:

KRB tFR-FAF A

=t—H REER

RlzmEMEE D

T
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L B3 A= BRITREAFE KEEE% FERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMBERZERAERLIR RAEHE 4,100,000 F K m & 30 @A
1E£TZ K

The associate is principally engaged in real estate
development in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000
(2016: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group's
investment in the associate.

ZHERRIERNERNEFBE

B

EMEEZERER AR RBUBALRT
BEEMYETIZRE -

N E BB
2,632,000 (=%

RAZHER

— A

2,632,000 7T ) 2 & AN A o
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(@) Investment in an associate (continued)

REZEAFRZRR BFTHRELFALZ
ERE®(|)
(a) RBELATZRE (&)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information MBEERBIEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
UsS$'000 us$'oo0
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—BA—BzEEFRE 11,166 11,217
Profit/(loss) for the year FraEM (EE) 684 (51)

Net assets as at 31 December Rt+t=ZA=+t—RH2

EEFE 11,850 11,166
Interest in an associate (30%) REE AT 2w (30%) 3,555 3,350

(b) Short-term loan to an associate
As at 31 December 2017, there is a short-term loan to
an associate of US$120,000 (2016: US$120,000) which is
unsecured, bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated
in US$ and is repayable on demand.

166 vedan International (Holdings) Limited b/ EIES (2 8%) AR AR

(b) HTHEARAZEHER
RZE—tF+=—A=1t—H %7
B AR 2 R BB F0120,000% 7T
(ZZ— X% :120,000FT) * &K
BEREEM mERNEIEF D A
ELFHE WARZRKEE-



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M wRMEE

12

13

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

12 BRENBSZEMIA

2017 2016
—E—tF —TT—REF
us$000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Loans and receivables ERRERRIE
— Long-term other receivables (Note 14) — REH o W RE
(Mi3E14) 1,307 90
— Trade receivables (Note 14) —[EWE RN
(PfEE14) 31,651 27,993
— Amount due from non-controlling — B B A A
interest of a subsidiary FEPE R AE = 2 IR - 823
— Loan to an associate (Note 11(b)) — KB THEABRZER
(PRFFET11(b)) 120 120
— Other receivables — current portion — H ftb fE W FIA
— BN ER &L 15 2,474 1,352
— Structured bank deposits (Note 15) — BRI ER
(BfzE15) 3,903 -
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 15) — R EIRITF R
(BfFzE15) 16,063 33,287
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) —RekREEEY
(Ht&E15) 49,679 55,210
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet GEBEEBRBERIRZ
BE 105,197 118,875
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ARG EZ
Mg ak
— Trade payables (Note 18) - ERE SRR
(P7E18) 15,772 18,296
— Other payables and accruals — H B 53R R
EErEA 8,860 5,469
— Amounts due to related parties —JENBREATRIE
(Note 34(d)) (B 5E34(d)) 1,418 836
— Bank borrowings (Note 19) —R1TEE (MiFE19) 35,397 36,810
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet #“AEBEABBERA T
afE 61,447 61,411
INVENTORIES 13 &8
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
US$'000 Us$’000
FEx F=ET
Consumables B FE @ 6,308 5,186
Raw materials JR AR 45,820 28,306
Work in progress TER @ 4,914 5,005
Finished goods SUPK o 25,826 26,785
82,868 65,282

The cost of inventories of US$202,763,000 (2016:
US$196,996,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

17 & 7K /202,763,000 T (= F —
196,996,000 7T ) B it AHER A
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BERBERREMERRE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RE
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Non-current trade receivables FERBEWE ZER - 168
Current trade receivables BN EUE B AR 31,651 27,825
Total trade receivables FEUE 5 R KB TR 31,651 27,993
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —ZE-REF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=ZTSTEZEXR 32,162 28,379
Less: provision for impairment of W EWE 5RO E
trade receivables & (511) (386)
Trade receivables - net EWEZRAR—FH 31,651 27,993
Prepayments TAT IR 6,877 11,931
Other receivables H YRR 3,781 1,442
42,309 41,366
Less: non-current portion of W B A R IE 2
other receivables FE BN EAER {n (1,307) (90)
Less: non-current trade receivables W IERBIE 5 AR 3K - (168)
Current portion EIR: Ry 41,002 41,108
The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables RE B FE UL E 5 AR R I E At FE IR 2 AR
approximate their fair values AEEEQAFERS-
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the BRNREEZEBHEERMBENK
purchase of raw materials. Other receivables as at 31 December H-RZZE—+HE+-A=+—8B Hf
2017 include the outstanding balance in relation to the disposal FEWFRIA B35 A A B R R R 2 R AR
of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24). TH 455 (BYsE24) -
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BEREBZEZREEMEBKHRIE (F)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based
on invoice date is as follows:

EWE SRR ZEEHHRELNIRE
R-AEBEAMETEPREBRRER
H MEZXRREEFHZNEER B
W SERIZERAMZRROITAT

2017 2016

—g—tf —E-AF

US$'000 UsS$'000

FER TER

0 - 30 days 0F30K 18,627 26,388
31 -90 days 31£90K 12,161 770
91 - 180 days 91£ 180K 667 271
181 - 365 days 181£365K 189 584
Over 365 days 365K F 518 366
32,162 28,379

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$25,259,000
(2016: US$26,187,000) were fully performing.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$6,392,000
(2016: US$1,806,000) were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not
impaired receivables is as follows:

R-ZZE—+F+=-A=+—H" 25,259,000
EL(ZT— /5% 126,187,000F L) 2 &
WEFRREHBRIT -

W-E—+F+-HF=+—H" 6,392,000
EL(ZF—7N% 1,806,000 1) 7 &
WE SEREZCEHERENKRBE 54
FEEATYEEAMBRSE 2B IEF
B AERBEBRALR AHKEHEA
ATEIL - 5% E B B A I KRR E 2 FEUGR
HZERERDTNT

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZTE—RF
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET

Overdue by peig i
0 - 90 days 0F90X 6,201 1,330
91 — 180 days 91F 180K 144 117
Over 180 days 180 KM £ 47 359
6,392 1,806

Annual Report 2017 53 169



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

mEMBHRME

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$511,000
(2016: US$386,000) were considered impaired. The amount
of the provision made was US$511,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: US$386,000). The ageing of these receivables is as

BEESEFREMERKRRIE (E)

R—ZT—+F+=-_A=+—H" 511,000
EL(=ZF — 75 386,000k L) 2 &
KEIEFERBERE - R_F— L
FT+_A=-+—BELENEEBEZTEA

follows: 511,000 L (=ZF — 7~ % :386,000%
T0) e ZEEWGRBORE ST T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
US$'000 US$'000
Fxx F=
Overdue by 180 5

0 - 90 days 0Z90K - -
91 - 180 days 912 180K - -
181 - 365 days 181%365K 20 20
Over 365 days 365K LA F 491 366
511 386

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

M 05 R I 2 B
TSR R

2017 2016

—E—+ifF TR

Us$°000 US$'000

FEx F=E=T

Vietnam Dong A 20,299 20,043
us$ EP 17,152 15,936
New Taiwan dollar ek 112 181
Renminbi AR 3,507 4,437
Others Hi 1,239 769
42,309 41,366
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14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

14

BREHERRAMERRE ()

A B2 e 55 WO e 2 B 7
W

2017 2016

—Z2—+tfF ZT—RHF

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January ®—A—8 386 353
Provision for receivables impairment JE YRR IR R B

(Note 23) (K#E23) 125 33

At 31 December wmt=ZRA=+—8~ 511 386

The creation of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement (Note 23). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

FEREBKFIRE L AR ERED A
RalERNITIE B (KHFE23) - K&
BERAGNESHE - RABERBEIR@ES
bRl i

BN E ZRF R E M AR IE A 2 B4R
MY AEEERMEEE -
REER ReEERRM DR EHIE

Wk R 2 BREE - AR BRI A E
] #5340 3 PR 4
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED

BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC of US$14,106,000
(2016: US$7,933,000) and Vietnam of US$38,257,000 (2016:
US$58,720,000) is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC and Vietnamese governments.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

mEMBHRME

15

BeRBeSEY RIBERTER
REMBITER

B AEZE£14,106,000k T (=&
— 7N%:7,933,000%7T) K EH #E
7 & $38,257,000k L (=& — X F:
58,720,000% 7t ) 7B 18 <F 71 B K it /9 B
B SN HE B Il HE 5 ©

2017 2016
—E—t& e AN-S
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET

Short-term bank deposits with original REBHBBBE=EA
maturity over three months 2R ERITIF R 16,063 33,287
Structured bank deposits EEMERITER 3,903 -
Cash at bank and on hand HwITRFHERS 49,679 55,210
69,645 88,497

As at 31 December 2017, cash at bank of US$49,447,000
(2016:US$55,012,000) and bank deposits of US$19,966,000
(2016: US$33,287,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

RZE—+F+_A=+—H8 817
I £49,447,000E L (Z T — N F:
55,012,000% 7T ) & 4R 17 13 519,966,000
E7T (—ZF— N4 :33,287,000F% 7T ) E R
EERRE-

AEEZRE MRS EE YA RIEHRT
TFREATERFE:

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—REF

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx F=ET

Vietnam Dong MEE 24,485 28,254
us$ E7T 29,119 50,287
Renminbi AR 15,738 9,681
Hong Kong dollar & IT 154 207
New Taiwan dollar ek 146 65
Others HAh 3 3
69,645 88,497
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FREMBEHRRME
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 BEeREEFEM BEERTER
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK REHMITER (&)
DEPOSITS (continued)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end RS EIR - AR B 2 BERE N R a0
of the reporting period were as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
Short-term bank deposits with original REER ABR=EA
maturity over three months EHIRITER 4.3% 3.1%
Structured bank deposits B MRITIFER 4.2% -
16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 BE=®
Authorised ordinary shares
EEZAR
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
HEER BiDEE FER
At 1 January 2016, RZFE-X"F-A—R"
31 December 2016 and ZE-AFFTZA=THK
31 December 2017 “E—+t&+=ZA=1+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
BRETRBEEER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$’000
HEXT RDER FER
At 1 January 2016, KWZE—R"F—A—H
31 December 2016 and —E-XE+-F=+—-HRK
31 December 2017 —E—+F+ZA=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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mEMBHRRMEE
17 RESERVES 17 GE&f@
Share Exchange Merger Retained
Premium Reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note)
R RE ELfE afRE REEA hm
()
US$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn FT=r = F=x FTET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE-R"E—A—H 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 260,390
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - 22,501 22,501
Other comprehensive income H i 2HEKA
Currency translation differences &5 =% - (2,240) - - (2,240)
Total comprehensive income 2 WA B H - (2,240) - 22,501 20,261
Total transaction with HBEEAZERZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) B8k 2 (HiEk26) - - - (14,344) (14,344)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-A=+—-8H 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 266,307
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—A—H 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 266,307
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year AEERT - - - 19,061 19,061
Other comprehensive income Hfh2HEKA
Currency translation differences & i Z %8 - 2,229 - - 2,229
Total comprehensive income 2 W A 4% - 2,229 - 19,061 21,290
Total transactions with BEBAZBRSZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) ERE (Fik26) - - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—8H 47,358 13,897 79,994 128,933 270,182
Note: FisE -
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between TEENEHHEBERBER ST -_F+=-A4
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the ZHABRKRMEEEARTNENE AR MK
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed AEHEERKRGREHEARDGETRIGMET
on 26 December 2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of the ZBEAEENETE-

Company issued in exchange therefor.
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FE B RRMEE
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 EfNEEERRAMEMCRE
2017 2016
—E—tE —T—REF
us$000 Us$'000
FEx F=7
Non-current JEENHA
Long-term environmental provision RER BB A 233 113
Current B #A
Trade payables B 5B 15,772 18,296
Accruals fEErE R 8,089 8,125

Payable of purchase of property, plant

ENEENE BEX

equipment and construction costs SR LA R R SR BN AR IR 4,127 222
Receipts in advance TEU FR g 1,296 2,581
Other payables H h fE A 708 3,997 4,709

33,281 33,933
Total trade and other payables ERESERR
HAth & SRR B 5R 33,514 34,046

At 31 December 2017, the ageing of trade payables based on

invoice date is as follows:

RZT—+F+t-HA=1+—R ENEH
ERRERBHZEROTOT

2017 2016

= —T-RF

Us$’000 us$’000

FTER F=E=

0 - 30 days 0E30K 13,912 17,232
31 - 90 days 31290K 1,567 1,026
91 — 180 days 91£2180K 111 4
181 — 365 days 1812365k 142 7
Over 365 days 365K £ 40 27
15,772 18,296

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables

are denominated in the following currencies:

REE 2 BNE SRR EMEN IR 2
BREEE T EEHE:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

US$'000 US$'000

FEx F=7

Vietnam Dong HMEE 15,473 12,813
us$ S 11,935 16,209
New Taiwan Dollar e 1,040 1,212
Renminbi AR 3,515 3,694
Euro £ 1,129 -
Others Hi 422 118
33,514 34,046
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REMBHRRMEE
19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 HITES
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Non-current JEENHER
- Long-term bank borrowings —RITRAMER 27,814 31,950
Less: current portion of long-term bank W RITREERZ
borrowings BNVEAFR o> (8.323) (7,760)
19,491 24,190
Current B H#A
— Short-term bank borrowings —IRITEEER 7,583 4,860
— Current portion of long-term bank —iRITREERZ
borrowings AVEREL 5> 8,323 7,760
15,906 12,620
Total bank borrowings RITEELR 35,397 36,810
At 31 December 2017, the Group's bank borrowings were RZZE—+tF+-_A=+—0 HrE£EZ
repayable as follows: RITEEERNA TEHRER:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Within 1 year —FN 15,906 12,620
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 8,867 7,760
Between 2 and 5 years MEZERF 9,562 16,430
Over 5 years RAE L 1,062 -
35,397 36,810
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REMBRRHE

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate

SEITHE (|

RIBEMR AEBEEREEOFKE

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the PRENEFRIEBEHET
reporting period are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-R

us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Within 6 months 618 A A 17,700 17,340
Between 7 and 12 months 721218 A 2,934 2,371
Between 1 and 5 years 1554 13,701 17,099
Over 5 years S5 E 1,062 -
35,397 36,810

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

AEBEBEEZROMEREQAPERSE-

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's RBEMR - AEEEBEE 2 EEREREN
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-REF
us$ EY 2.2% 2.1%
New Taiwan dollar mak 2.0% 2.0%
Renminbi N - 4.8%
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mEMBHRME

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

MITHESR ()
FEBBEZRMERATESHE:

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—X
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
uss eV 34,727 36,296
New Taiwan dollar ek 670 465
Renminbi AR - 49
35,397 36,810
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REEBUTREAEERE
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Floating rate: SN
— Expiring within one year — R —FRNE 27,849 20,044
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F &3 H 25,449 18,000
Fixed rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—FRIH 47,330 76,460
— Expiring beyond one year — R — 1% 2 H - 3,963
100,628 118,467

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$154,396,000 (2016:
US$171,219,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2017 amounted to US$100,628,000 (2016: US$118,467,000).

The Group's bank borrowings of US$29,473,000 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: US$30,646,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees.
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W-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H KA&H
A HEE RBEH154,396,000% 7T 2 R1T
mE (ZZF—7"%F:171,219,0005% 7T) 1
BIETEE BHBERKH b —RIRITE
Beh—ZE—+HE+-A=+—"8 %9
A+£%4100,628,0003 T ( ZZF — /N4 :
118,467,000% T ) ©

AEERZTE—+F+=ZA=+—H
£ 29,473,000 0 (=T — R &F:
30,646,000 70) Z BITEE TR QA E
RIE AR -
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e M wRMEE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

20

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

i %E B 15 1R
BEEFEHRIRERELAREB 2E P
FRREHHN T ER KA T /At
o

BREFEREBEZATWT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
US$'000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R EBIE121E A % Y E
recovered after more than 12 months ZIEEFBHAE 3,263 3,416

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

RIEFSHRE B @M T

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF A S
us$’000 Us$'000
Fxx FET
At 1 January w—A—8 3,416 4,178
Income statement credit (Note 25) FFAME K (MFFE25) (153) (762)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 3,263 3,416

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

REFBELEHEHEERBE (R RE
SHAR R EIA REHE (2 RO A5 8R AT ) MO B LR
T

ELEREHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEBBINE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF T —RF
Uss$’000 US$'000
FER FET
At 1 January ®R—H—H 4,196 4,899
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RErE TR AMBR
income statement (5T A) 330 (703)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,526 4,196

Annual Report 2017 3% 179



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M RRMEE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

21

Deferred income tax assets

20

BIEFRS]R (1))
BEFEHEE

Other temporary differences

Hin B =5
2017 2016
:E_‘tqi —= /\$
Us$‘000 Us$’000
SFEETL FE=T
At 1 January n—AH— (780) (721)
Credited to consolidated income statement st A& H =& (483) (59)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 (1,263) (780)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$910,000 (2016: US$799,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income tax
assets of US$1,846,000 (2016: US$2,085,000) in respect of the
unrecognised tax loss of US$7,382,000 (2016: US$8,338,000).
These tax losses for PRC corporate income tax purposes will
expire within five years. Tax losses of US$2,399,000 (2016:
Us$2,512,000), US$2,774,000 (2016: US$3,732,000),
US$2,209,000 (2016: US$2,094,000) will expire within
one year, within two years and within three to five years
respectively.

REVENUE

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup,
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 were US$322,805,000 and
US$327,640,000 respectively.
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21

RIEF B EMERE ALBETHE
MEARIEZTTNF—A—AREL
§3% F) - ZBBh 2 Ik T ANE R A B K s ) iR
10% BT R G AN TEFO RN © R R AN 52 (B 1 46
ZEFBRMBEARZBRERE  BAEH
ZHEME AR R a FEMN 2 k=58
TARPIEER O] R G R B D - il Mgk iz %
i EEEREEER AE10,0003%
T (ZZF—7X%F :799,000%7T) °

ELEFTEREETABEEHEHETER
R R T B IR s AT B IS5
BELER AEEBAAERBBERE
7,382,000 T, (=& — 7~ F : 8,338,000
ENIZCABRECHEMREE R
1,846,000% T (= F — /N & : 2,085,000
ETT) cHMAPESEMEVME 2%EHH
B B A E HR - B E5182,399,000
EL(ZF—XF:2,512,000F 1) *
2,774,0003 7T (== — /X : 3,732,000
EJC) 2,209,000F L (=& — X F:
2,094,000 7T) D AR —F A -MFRA
UE=FERFREIEH-

&
AEBERERIPEERERQAME - &1t
EaRERNDIXER BEZMHR
B BEERE K RITRER -H=_
T—tFRZF-—A"FF+ZA=+—HIE
FEER 2 W= o 5l £322,805,000% 7T
327,640,000 JT °
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Fe R RMEE
22 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 22 Htuka (BR) 28
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
Us$'000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Net exchange gains/(losses) R Wz (EiE) 558 647 (1,102)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMEREEZ
plant and equipment &8 (340) (176)
Impairment of property, W E MEENRE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (PEE7) - (2,882)
Impairment of amount due from the sGNNI E ey
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary M 7 RERE (847) -
Sales of scrap materials RERIHE 596 501
Government grant BT 8 B 392 -
Others Hith 487 (431)
935 (4,090)

Annual Report 2017 3% 181



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

B M wRMEE

23 HEHESBZRAX
HERA  HERDHAS RITRAX M

23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZAIZSWHET
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Changes in inventories and FEKERBEREME
consumables used (Note 13) (FF3E13) 202,763 196,996
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) | S EEE (M) 134 133
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T A REE S (MEEe) 61 61
Auditor’s remuneration % ELRD B &
- Audit services —RRBRE 345 320
— Non-audit services — IR 115 5
Depreciation on property, M BERRETE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FF7E7) 18,170 18,475
Operating leases expenses in respect of ARAASTHEERO
leasehold land =53 294 305
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) 1B BRI = (M:E28) 35,097 36,973
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE 5 RE SR E R
receivables (Note 14) (FHzE14) 125 33
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) #iTZiE B (K 5E34(b)) 2,181 2,156
Travelling expenses ERMAX 1,484 1,486
Transportation expenses B 2 9,400 8,893
Advertising expenses B & B 52 2,962 3,147
Other expenses H b2 27,555 25,887
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution S8 & A~ & &5 #HF
expenses and administrative expenses X RITH R 300,686 294,870
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REMBRRHE

24

25

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) - NET 24 BEBBKA(ZXH) —28
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
USs$'000 Us$’000
Fxx FET
Finance income B U A 853 686
Interest expense on bank borrowings WITIEER ML (812) (900)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying B EREEERNERIA
assets (Note 7) (FI5E7) 143 25
Discounting effect on non-current other FE IR B H th JE WK IE 2
receivable (Note) WEEE (M) (135) -
Finance costs B 7% > (804) (875)
Finance income/(costs) — net FWA (ZH)
— %% 49 (189)

Note:

On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose
of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed during this year.

According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2017 of US$2,040,000 is repayable in the
amount of US$680,000, US$680,000 and US$680,000 in 2018, 2019
and 2020, respectively. The balance is non-interest bearing.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

25

B

RE-TE—tF R+ %S () RH
ARARHE—ZBILFE=ZFFI L —EHBHE A
3,400,000E L 2 RELEAFHERE N Y% - B
EREH - GZXHGRAFETK -

BEZBE2ARERR RZT—tF+=
AZ=Z+—HZMAKEE482,040,000FTAR
—E-N\F ZE-NFRZZ_TFHHE
680,000 7T * 680,0003 7T &2680,0003 7T ©
BB -

FRiG MBI
i N I L F A b E R MR A &
BEEMERR cHITHENE -
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mEMBHRME

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

iR (&)
REFA W RN 2 ER SRR

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—X

Us$’000 Us$'000

FER FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") BEMSH 4,592 6,993
Under-provision of income tax MAEFEMMERBEEDE

in previous years 131 12

Total current tax BVEAfi IR 42 %8 4,723 7,005

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEFTSHE (BT 3E20) (153) (762)

4,570 6,243

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

AREERFT TS B AT R A PSR 2L
RAZEEEZH B A R T8 A
BiRMat B Em bR AR &0 E

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZT—RF

Us$’000 Us$'000

FER FET

Profit before tax B 5 A g 23,308 28,476
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% BI5% 2 MEFE 2B

(2016: 15%) —T—RF:15%) 3,496 4,271

Tax effects of different tax rates TR E M2 1,132 1,249

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes DR 2 A 204 683

Income not subject to tax BARBIA (11) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax A A RERYIISE S

losses (672) (220)

Under-provision in prior years RiBTFETBEE 131 12
Tax losses for which no deferred income WEBRRELEMEREE

tax asset was recognised Z B EE 290 248

Tax charge BIA 4,570 6,243

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.
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REMBEBRRMEE
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25 FREMMAX(#\)
(i) Vietnam (i) M
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in ZIE AR E T Al B FTETR - AR
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered SETURNEBNERCEMS
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the MR 315% A BT 3R 75 i BURT P
subsidiary’s investment license. BETHEERE.
(i) The PRC (i) +E
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the ANEE R E ) ERFRE AR
PRC is 25%. BHEEB25% °
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong (i) FgE BB
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as A AN 5 B 0 N 4F [ 30 4 T8 3T N3
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or KB BRI ES S ERTUER -
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year. B b S 48 1 3 g B SR ST
B
(iv) Taiwan (iv) &%
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in AEETERENEBNBERMEM
Taiwan is 17%. BRER/IT% °
26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
A final dividend of US$12,740,000 that relates to the year BHEBE-T—XF+ZA=+—H1E
ended 31 December 2016 declared in 23 May 2017 and was FIE 2 REMKE12,740,000E T ER ZF
paid in 2017 (2016: US$4,583,000). —+FRA-+ZBERRA-E—+
FFUZAAN (ZF—7X%F:4,583,0005%
JT) e
The interim dividends paid in 2017 was US$4,675,000 (0.307 RZE—tFINBOFRBAREBE B
US cents per share) (2016: US$9,761,000, 0.641 US cents 4,675,000% 7T (B A%0.307%& ) (==&
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 — 7 % 19,761,000k T (F%0.6413
December 2017 of 0.443 US cents per share, amounting W)) B —Z—-—N\FRA=-T+=HA%
to a total dividend of US$6,750,000, is to be proposed for THRREEAFRe LRENHEIENE
approval at the annual general meeting on 23 May 2018. These E T —+tHFT_A=T—HILEFEHN
consolidated financial information do not reflect this dividend REIIE B B EIR0.443E 1l - i B 4858 =
payable. 6,750,000 7T © 3% 4 & M & R A
Mz ENRE -
2017 2016
= —T-RF
Uss$’000 UsS$'000
FER FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.307 US cents TR ERR R
(2016: 0.641 US cents) per ordinary T3 A%0.3073= A1
share (ZZT—REF:
0.6413=11) 4,675 9,761
Proposed final dividend of 0.443 US cents  ##Jk & HAA% 8 & A%
(2016: 0.837 US cents) per ordinary TEA%0.4433% 110
share (ZZE—REF:
0.837%1) 6,750 12,740
11,425 22,501
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REMBHRRMEE
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SER¥
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREXRBNIERNARHEE ABE
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i A B DA A B B 1T E B AR A hnAE
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHHEE -

during the year.

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Profit attributable to owners of ZAN/NIE RSN
the Company (US$'000) wmA (FET) 19,061 22,501
Weighted average number E#1T T mAR R INAE
of ordinary shares in issue EHEH (TR
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BRELRAZF
(US cents per share) (BRRZEM) 1.25 1.48
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per HE-_Z—tFRZT—R"F+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=Z+—BLFE ARL&EEET
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. B WEKEERNAGRERZT
EIE
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 EREFAXZ (BEEEFHFMHM)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—XRF
Us$’000 Us$’000
Fxx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE& - xR 28,128 29,462
Directors’ bonus (Note 30) BRI (ME30) 1,921 2,515
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  E{k& 5k A&
—ERRHREH 2,649 2,681
Other employee benefits HiEERA 2,399 2,315
35,097 36,973
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REMBRRHE

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 BAEFRE

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day.

REBESFHEERTE AEEBLSER
ZENFE+ A=t —HRUREANY
HERERETHEENEBAEF 8 - ZER
BABER —ZENF+_A=+—HZ
AR %% & i K B 1% IR 75 B B AT 7S 18 A HARE O
FHAFHER-

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—REF
Us$000 Us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January n—H—8 1,386 1,230
Current service cost BV EA AR 75 5 2 176 253
Payments (N (115) (97)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,447 1,386
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrfEANFEEBsERIRmT:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-R
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FER FETT
Discount rate X 9% 9%
Salary growth rate IE®RX 3.0% - 8.0% 3.0% -7.9%

T8 HA R B8 AR 75 F IR

Expected years of service remaining

14-18 yearsf 14 -19 yearstF

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

REH_ZFTNF—A—ARERZHERE
HERBE AEEARHEUERERE
RERZEBHBRBAZFELHT R
EHZERRE AREMEEMNIRE
T REHFNIPUNEERSERR
il
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFEHEIRER (FRLAFGH (8
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622K )E3831F ' AT (HBREHF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE REH)RG (F622GE)REEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAUBEHE)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHRAEZ#HE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREERSMITHRAER ZFHED
executive is set out below: /IR
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-Z-—tH+=-A=+—-HL
FRE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
HESEA
EBALTY
Expm EWEARAEHN
¥ RERENER BAEAHE  RHBBEAS
Name of Director j £3:44 e (KEa) BiREA (K&Eb) Fifefts  ERzHBMHE &t
US$'000 Uss'000 USs'000 US$'000 USs'000 US$'000 Uss'000
TER T£n FEn TEn RE TEn Tin
Executive Director HTES
M. Yang, Tou-Hsiung B L 1 383 572 15 - - 931
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #B3esEfe  (iiFc) - 380 549 15 - - 944
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRUEE - 181 400 15 - - 596
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou i - 181 400 15 - - 596
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng EHERE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRRGLE 1 - - 14 - - 15
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 3 - - 14 - - 17
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BRBFEL 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa Bl £ 1 - - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen % E 2 - - 14 - - 16
Total mE 10 1,085 1,921 158 - - 3,174
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFRARER(FEBLFGEHN (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E)E383F AT (HBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SFH)HM (F622GE)REFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF hHRAFAEWHE) (&)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHAEZ#HMS (F)
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-ZE-XF+=-A=+—-HL
FE:

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services
in connection

with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
ERARAL
BIm EMBEARSHD
i ZRRENET RIVERGE  EpBBERR
Name of Director j &35 e (Hf3ta) Wi (fftb) MR BRZABEHE Ai
Us§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEL TEL FEL RESD iR FEn FEL
Executive Director HEes
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRERE 1 338 750 15 - - 1,104
M. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 16 - 14 - - 30
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) 13 5 4 (M) - 374 715 15 - - 1,104
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 179 525 15 - - 719
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou B & - 179 525 15 - - 719
Non-executive Director F87ES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng EBRLE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BERRGE 1 - - 14 - - 15
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BRELRE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BRERE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa EiE & St 1 - - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen gt 3 - - 14 - - 17
Total it 10 1,086 2515 158 - - 3,769
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

EFRIRES (FELFGH (8

622 ) 383 AT (HBEEF
REHE)HRG (B622GE)REEL
THRAVWREHE) (1)

(A) EERSRITRAEZHE (H)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESRERESLRY ESRERAQFY
(FRAFAAZHMBARZES) HWBAREHEED
BEXNRERZ2EHSE HittRBC BN EUzEtM e B8 G At
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF —E-tE ZE-RF —E-tF ZE-R"F
US$°000 Us$'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
FEn TER FEn TET TEn TER
3,174 3,769 - - 3,174 3,769
Note: B 5
(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (a) TRTF—RESNHATRERZA
or receivable in respect of that person's other services in TIREEREBEARADNASKEWE R AE
connection with the management of the affairs of the 675 B8 B9 H ) AR 7% M & <2 {5 SR UL A
Company or its subsidiary undertakings. Bl < o
(b)  Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling (b) ALK E YR B AR E iR E, -
allowance.
() The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate () REERERNQTITEAE - W&

disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2016: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2016: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: same)

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2016: same).

30 EEWRARER (FRELFGH (5
622 ) $3831F ' AT (HBEHF
ZEHE)BRG (B622GE)REEL
THRAVREHE) ()

(B) EFEMNKER
Rz Z2—+F+=ZA=+—H
EFE WEAESHRHSERAR
7)ok LB B 2 R /9 B 7 BT IR A A B
B NEMBAREN (ZF—RF:
HE) -

(O RUEESRBER
RBEE-T—tF+-_A=+t—8
IFEE - WERAEE S MK RS
@ (ZFT—RF AR) -

(D) BEUESHEEMAE=FRHEH
KE
REE_F-—tF+-_HA=+—H
WLEE - WEpIRHEERB M
F=ZARHERE(ZT—RF: 4
[l)

(E) FEUEES IZFEBEHNEA
BRENZEEENARERZERR
HANER EERREBXSINE
#
REBEE-ZT—tF+-_A=+—8
WHEFE - WERNEE ZZEEEE
BEEABBLZEEENE R E
ERAZB/AFHNER BEERK
Hith2 5 (ZZT—RF:R) -
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mEMBHRME

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2016: same).

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included five (2016: five)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.

(H) Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

30

EFRIRES (FELOFGH (8
622 ) 383 AT (HBEEF
REHE)HG (B622GE)REEL
THRAVWREHE) (1)

(F) ESRXE REIGHTHWEKRE
=
RAFEXRAFERNE[MERE A
AW EARBEBEEMA
NAEFEERMEEAEAESR
BEMEARS ZHHAH (ZF
—NE R e

(G) EEBZESMEAL
AEBAFEAREREME AL
EREAR(CF—RF AEB)HNT
Ex wREMECN LXZ0E
BBk e

H) ZEEHS>EREEARHS
B B A T E E

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
=t e
Emolument bands (in US$) Me®E (FT)
US$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 7L
- 105,000% 7T 2 2
US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,001% 7T
- 130,000% 7T 4 4
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash generated from operations

31 HaREEH

(a) EBELEZEE

2017 2016
—E—tF A=
uss$’000 Us$'000
FExn FET
Profit before income tax R PIT 45 350 Bl F 23,308 28,476
Adjustments for: MUATIEE
— Finance (income)/costs — B () =
- net (Note 24) — 2% (MI5E24) (49) 189
— Share of post tax (profit)/ —E(hEE & AT
loss of an associate (Note 11) R CaF)
&8 (KiEE11) (205) 15
— Depreciation of property, —M% HWE R
plant and equipment (Note 7) HREITE (MEE7) 18,170 18,475
— Provision for impairment of —EWE S ERFURE
trade receivables (Note 14) B (M5E14) 125 33
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A EE
(Note 9) (KIEE9) 134 133
— Amortisation of land use rights — - b {50 PR 4 M B
(Note 6) (Kfzte) 61 61
— Impairment of property, —UE - BWE K
plant and equipment BERE (FF5E22)
(Note 22) - 2,882
— Impairment of amount due from —ER—FEfE AR Z
the non-controlling interest of FEIE R R RIA 2
a subsidiary (Note 22) BE (HaE22) 847 -
— Loss on disposal of property, —REME HE R
plant and equipment Rz EE
(see below) (RT3 340 176
42,731 50,440
Change in working capital (excluding ZE&£EH)
the effects of exchange differences (Rt lRBEE
on consolidation) fENEETE)
- Inventories —F58 (17,586) 14,755
- Trade receivables, prepayments —ERE SR
and other receivables A RIE R
H it & W 5RIE 591 (1,015)
— Trade payables, accruals and —ENESER
other payables EAERR
H At A 3RIA (4,597) 9,770
— Net changes in balances with —HEEEAFIRIEZ
related companies FE)FE 582 (121)
Cash generated from operations ¥BEECRS 21,721 73,829

Annual Report 2017 3% 193



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

REMBEHRRMEE
31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31 RERETH (#)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) () ¥BELEZH£ (&)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds fireHensaxn  HEWE B
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BREBEZEERIENT
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Net book amount (Note 7) FREFE (FaE7) 489 238
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WMELREZ
plant and equipment (Note 22) Ei1a (fF7E22) (340) (176)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE MELZEZ
plant and equipment FT15 508 149 62
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) BHEFEZHE
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the REHIINE 2V M 2 B FE
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. DT RET TR -
Net debt B FE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Us$’000 Us$’o00
FERn FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekREZEY 49,679 55,210
Bank borrowings — repayable RITER-—R—FRER
within one year (15,906) (12,620)
Bank borrowings — repayable RITER R —FREE
after one year (19,491) (24,190)
Net debt &5 558 14,282 18,400
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 49,679 55,210
Gross debt — fixed interest rates 15 7% M50 — & 7E 7 3K (17,970) (26,599)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B 4R%E — B F X (17.427) (10,211)
Net debt AR 14,282 18,400
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e KRR
31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31 BReRERHE (|)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) BEFHEZER (&)

Liabilities from
Assets financing activities

gE REBETH AR

Bank Bank
Cash  borrowings borrowings
and cash due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total
ek R—FRIH R-—FEIH
BeZEY ZRTER  ZBRTEX &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$’000
FETL FEL FET FETL
Net debt as at RZB-RE—-HF—

1 January 2016 B2 E®EE 44,190 (23,113) (28,613) (7,536)
Cash flows ReEmE 11,829 14,916 - 26,745
Foreign exchange HNE

adjustments (809) - - (809)
Other non-cash movement ~ HJFE & & - (4,423) 4,423 -
Net debt as at R-B—RE

31 December 2016 +=A=+-H

ZEBFER 55,210 (12,620) (24,190) 18,400
Cash flows BenE (6,462) 5,036 (3,623) (5,049)
Foreign exchange SN 8 2E

adjustments 931 - - 931
Other non-cash movement EMIELeEH - (8,322) 8,322 -
Net debt as at R-Z—+t&F

31 December 2017 +=BA=+-H

ZEREE 49,679 (15,906) (19,491) 14,282
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REMBEHRRMEE
32 COMMITMENTS 32 KiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EBEXREE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end AERBRBREMAREFTNERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARLZHWT
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—-RK
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Contracted but not provided for AT AME KRB
Property, plant and equipment W BB MEE 1,864 1,043
Investment in an associate REERRIZI/E 2,632 2,632
4,496 3,675
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REENEE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REBERBEAAHELL2HEOER
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as R R RARE ERRIBET T
follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E—-R
Us$’000 Us$’000
FER FET
No later than one year —FN 139 305
Later than one year and no later than —&E&ERER
five years 422 809
Later than five years hFiE 2,032 2,138
2,593 3,252
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HRAR
At 31 December 2017, the Company has given guarantees for RZEBE—tF+tA=1+—H XxRAAE
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$120,426,000 M B R 5 A%$120,426,000F 7T ( ZF— X
(2016: US$128,462,000), of which US$74,249,000 (2016: % :128,462,000% 7T ) 2 RITRL B IR (L HE
US$83,946,000) has not been utilised. R H 74,249,000 (Z T — /N F:

83,946,000 7T ) WA A
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REMBRRHE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(a)

(b)

34 BRAEALES

REESKRIERTAEGRRE EXER
B BEAE BIELE BXRELE 5
WA GEINEE  BKERE  BR
M EBIURR A BREE BB
T BB RGRIBEL L

The table below summarises the related parties and (a) THEHAR=ZFT—EF+=A
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31 =t—AZEBEATREERE
December 2017: E H R RIS

Related party Relationship with the Group

BEEAT B B R R

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan") A substantial shareholder of the Company
RARERODARAT ([E8EKMA]) RAFHEERE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd.
EMRER R AR AR

Capron Group Limited

Capron Group Limited

An associate of the Group
RE B E T E R A
A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—RAmBERREARZEN 22

Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAXAEEATEKBEFETNHE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as AREBEATRSWT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE—RF
Note us$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5T FEx FE
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan ARERSHEESE R (i) 5,901 6,164
Technical support fee paid to A & R AT Bl
Taiwan Vedan XEE (i) 2,181 2,156
Agency commission income A B IR ST AR Y
received from Taiwan Vedan REMS A (ii) 4 6
Notes: B 5 -
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) ARRIEERE MEBEALTE
the related party were conducted in the normal course of L2 ERTCARERBREFE
business. 70

(i)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the
terms of underlying agreements.

(i) ARAEFERR
EmiEhET
AR E -

REXHERE
I BARIBAERE 1
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FREALES (#])
() Key management compensation () FEEEAE#MS
The compensation paid or payable to key management, REERBENIENEEZERA
including all executive directors and senior management, B(BEMERTESLARER
for employee services is shown below. [B) 2 HME T -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RK
Us$’000 Us$’000
FER FET
Salaries and other short-term FMEHEMEHERRT
employee benefits 3,903 4,464
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HEEBREATZFEREH
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following RZEBE—tF+ZA=+—0H K&
significant balances with the related parties: BHEEEEATZFELHRIT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 55 FEx FEx
Current: BNER -
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FES BB Y 2 308 0) (1,405) (806)
Short term loan to an associate BTEERRZ
REER (i) 120 120
Amount due to Capron Group J& <f Capron Group
Limited Limited,Z K78 (iii) (13) (30)
Notes: Bt o

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(ii) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears
interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and is
repayable on demand.

(iii) ~ The balance with Capron Group Limited is unsecured,

interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.
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e M wRMEE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 FAFIEEARERFEHED
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company TAREEEER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note UsS$‘000 Us$'000
B FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REENFZIRE 3,788 3,788
Loan to a subsidiary BTMBRRZER 2,200 2,200
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 172,018 172,018
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE B B A B 3R0B 49,111 68,421
Short-term loan to an associate BFBERNAZREER 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables TR AT R & E At FE M IR 678 733
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITIE R 1,928 19,816
Cash and cash equivalents ReMAEEEY 14,555 1,928
Total current assets REBEELAE 66,392 91,018
Total assets EEH#E 238,410 263,036
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners RRBEE ARG
of the Company
Share capital & A< 15,228 15,228
Reserves ] (Note (a))
(FfF5E(a)) 218,874 243,516
Total equity ERBE 234,102 258,744
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 FRNFEEAGEERERED (MA)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TXAREEEER (&)

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—ARF
Note US$’000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES &8E
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JEET B A R H A0 fE S 5RIR 3,291 3,714
Bank borrowings RITIEE 670 465
Amount due to a related party JERT B REA LT HIB 347 113
Total current liabilities REBEEERE 4,308 4,292
Total equity and liabilities ERkaEEE 238,410 263,036
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARREEBBREEEFTEN AN
of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf. FZRAZ+LEBHIHTIALARERE
% o
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
SRS %5 R
Director Director
EFE EaE2
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35

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

35

FOFRERRERGEMED (M)

rRARNEERER (H)
Wi @) A2 P R

Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
IR 13 % B ERREE RERAF k-G
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FE FET FEx FxET
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—R"F—HF—B8 194,098 (151) 12,174 206,121
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit for the year AR R A - - 51,719 51,719
Other comprehensive income Hft ZE WA
Currency translation difference  E W Z% - 20 - 20
Total comprehensive income  Z2MHEUWAEEE - 20 51,719 51,739
Dividends paid BRRE - - (14,344) (14,344)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF
+—-—A=+—8” 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year AEEER - - (7,332) (7,332)
Other comprehensive income H i ZmEU A
Currency translation difference B} =% - 105 - 105
Total comprehensive income/ ZEW A~ (FiE) A%

(loss) - 105 (7,332) (7,227)
Dividends paid B B - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F

+ZA=+—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
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